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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Sta_tements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Maharashtra Transmission Communication
Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our resporsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

The Director’s report was not made available to us as at the date of auditor’s report. We have nothing to
“report.in this regard. i
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completen-ess of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement wheii it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to araw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




GSKA& Co.

Chartered Accountants

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act based on our audit, we give
in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, in
electronic mode on servers physically located in India so far as it appears from our examination of
those books except that the backup of the books of accounts and other books maintained in
electronic mode on servers physically located in India on daily basis not been maintained for certain
days during the year and for the matters stated in the paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from tl.e directors as on March 31, 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i) vi
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2025;

. (i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
Al of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
=P information and according to the explanations given to us:
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The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts includiig derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have beer: considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with section
123 of the Act.

(THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made, if any, using
privileged or administrative access rights to the application and underlying database, as described
in note 42 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting software
where the audit trail has been enabled.

Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in those respective year.

ForGSK A & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 147093W
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Partner

Membership Number: 136512
UDIN: 25136512BMIRJG3144
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: June 19, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited (the "Company")

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
state that:

(i) (a)(A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the previous
year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025 since the Company follows cost model
for measurement after recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(ii)(a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the

requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate
from banks/financial institutions on the basis of the security of the current assets of the company.
Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements,
the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions
are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

(iii)(a) During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(d)  There are no amounts of loans granted to companies which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e)  There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies which was fallen due
during the year, that have been renewed or extended or frash loans granted to settle the overdues
of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii)(@a) ~ The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise
duty, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

(wviii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix)(a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to any
lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)  The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the require ment to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments), hence the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made 'any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance w:th sections 177 and 188 of Companies

Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement
to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) and clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b)  The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

7 A(;gn There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
1) & \ to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix)

(xx)(a)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 27(b)
to the financial statements.

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to
a special account in compliance.of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements.

ForGSK A & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 147093W
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Maharashtra Transmission
Communication Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over finaricial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company;
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(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForGSKA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 147093W
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MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025

Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
ASSETS
Non-current assets 5 N =
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,639.86 1.416.13
Capital work-in-progress 4 314.39 209.35
Other intangible assets 5 105.83 113.68
Right-of-use asset 6 10.00 4.98
Financial assets
i. Loans 7 - 500.00
ii. Other financial assets 9 239.19 167.49
Income tax assets (net) 13 333.22 185.92
Other non-current assets 10 043 0.57
Total non-current assets 2,642.92 2,598.12
Current assets
Financial assets
i. Loans 7 500.00 -
ii. Trade receivables 8 2242 763.32
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 11 22,05 1.172.85
iv. Other bank balances 12 1,849.19 772.50
v. Other financial assets 9 84.09 54.69
Other current assets 10 10.43 4.63
Total current assets 2,688.18 2,767.99
TOTAL ASSETS 5,331.10 5,366.11
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 30108 44023
Other equity
i. Retained earnings 15 (11.09) 235.00
ii. Other reserves 15 (825.45) 139.05
Total equity (535.46) 814.28
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Lease liabilities 29 13.04 7.14
Contract liability 18 4,888.29 3,825.23
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 137.54 116.32
Total non-current liabilities 5,038.87 3,948.69
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Lease liabilitics 29 0.02 0.05
ii. Trade payables 16
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises « 6.34
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 198 54 105.34
iii. Other financial liabilities 17 126.06 105.07
Contract liabilitics 18 43431 325.19
Other current liabilities 19 68.76 61.15
- Total current liabilities 827.69 603.14
Total liabilities 5,866.56 4,551.83
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,331.10 5,366.11
Summary of material accounting policies 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For GSKA & Co. _ For and on behalf of; the ors of
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MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)

INCOME
Revenue from operations 21 84334 628.59
Other income 22 252 -
Total income (1) 845.86 628.59
EXPENSES
Purchase of traded goods 23 0.19 0.95
Other expenses 27 42285 308.04
Total expenses (1I) 423.04 308.99
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (I) - (II) 422.82 319.60
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 103.11 70.21
Finance costs 26 3.09 1.68
Finance income 25 (235.81) (175.32)
Profit before tax 552.43 423.03
Tax expense:
Current tax 28 118.05 30.84
Deferred tax 28 21.22 76.25
Income tax expense 139.27 107.09
Profit for the year 413.16 315.94
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods - -
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 413.16 315.94
Earnings per equity share 30
Basic and diluted
Computed on the basis of profit for the year (net of tax) (Rs. per share) 9.63 8.93
Summary of material accounting policies 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For GSK A & Co. For and on behalf of the
Shan;x:d Ac, ¢ Maharashtra Transi ation Infrastructure Li
% b
per GaneshGaikwad / a Rajshekhar Deshraj Satish Vitthalrao Chavan
Partner ) * Managing Director Chairman
Membership Number: 135612 o DIN: 08920289 DIN: 05210333
Place: Pune = Place; Gurugram Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 June 2025 o, Date: 19 June 2025 Date: 19 June 2025

ophia Lorean Swamy
Company Secretary
Membership No. A268
Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 June 2025



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

SRUREe (Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit as per statement of profit and loss 413.16 315.94
j i 139.27 107.09
Adjustment for taxation S 22303
Profit before tax 552. X
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense 103.11 70.21
Finance income (235.81) (173.30)
Finance costs 1.50 1.68
(131.20) (101.41)
Operating profit before working capital changes 421.23 321.62
Movements in working capital:
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 540.90 (599.14)
- Increase in other financial assets (8.88) (156.47)
- (Increase)/decrease in other assets (5.65) 13.75
- Increase in trade payables 86.85 81.37
- Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (50.98) 22.06
- Increase in other liabilities 8.95 53.61
- Increase in contract liabilities 1,172.19 1,128.56
Changes in working capital 1,743.38 543.74
Cash generated from operations 2,164.61 865.36
Direct taxes paid (265.35) (28.42)
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,899.26 836.94
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress) (351.27) (621.35)
Proceeds/(investment) in deposits with banks (net) (1,145.82) 735.79
Repayment of loan given to related party - 150.00
Income from deposits with banks 163.10 70.05
Interest on security deposit given to related party 7.64 6.82
Interest on capital advance given to related party - 0.83
Interest from loans given to related party [including advance interest received/(refunded)] 40.63 (2.68)
Net cash flow from / (cash used in) investing activities (1,285.72) 339.46
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Lease liabilities paid (1.44) (0.83)
Payment for redemption of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares - (88.05)
Proceed from issue of equity share capital - 88.05
Payment on account of reduction of equity share capital (139.15) -
Dividend paid on equity share capital (251.81) (25.91)
Dividend paid on preference share capital - (11.89)
Finance costs paid (0.00) (0.87)
Premium paid on account of reduction of equity share capital (1,360.85) -
Expenses incurred on reduction of equity share capital (11.09) -
Net cash used in financing activities (1,764.34) (39.50)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,150.80) 1.136.90
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of year 1,172.85 35.95
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year 22.05 1,172.85

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Balance with banks on current accounts
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11)

(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
12.05 5.38
10.00 1,167.47
22.05 1,172.85

Reconciliation between opening and closing liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term borrowings

Short term borrowings

01 April 2023

Cash flow
- Dividend paid (net of TDS)
- Proceeds/(repayments)

99.94

(11.89)
(88.05)

31 March 2024

Cash flow
- Proceeds/(repayments)

31 March 2025

Summary of material accounting policies 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For GSK A & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 147093W

9@&/ G,

Maharashtra Trans

pér Ganesh Gaikwad
Partner

Membership Number: 135612
Place: Pune

Date: 19 June 2025

urya Rajshekhar Deshraj
Managing Director

DIN: 08920289

Place: Gurugram

Date: 19 June 2025

Stphia Lorean Sw

Company Secreta
Membership No.
Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 June 2025
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For and on behalf of thfboar

directors of

‘ommunication Infrastructure Limited

M
Satish Vifthalrao Chavan
Chairman
DIN: 05210333
Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 June 2025



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

At 01 April 2023*

Issue of share capital
At 31 March 2024*
Issue of share capital

Equity shares cancelled pursuant to reduction of share capital

At 31 March 2025

B. OTHER EQUITY

Nos. in million

Rs. in million

34.55 345.51
9.47 94.72
44.02 440.23
(13.92) (139.15)
30.11 301.08

(Rs. in million)

Deficit on account of capital

Capital redemption reserve

Capital contribution

Securities premium

Retained earnings

Total

reduction reserve
At 01 April 2023* - - 51.00 6.67 33.02 90.69
Profit for the year - - - - 31594 315.94
Other comprehensive income - - - o - -
Total comprehensive income - - - - 315.94 315.94
Dividend paid - - - - (25.91) (25.91)
Created on redemption of preference shares
during the year (refer note 16) - 88.05 - - (88.05) -
Utilised for issue of bonus shares (refer note
14) - - - (6.67) - (6.67)
At 31 March 2024* - 88.05 51.00 - 235.00 374.05
Profit for the year - - - - 413.16 413.16
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - - 413.16 413.16
Dividend paid - - - - (251.81) (251.81)
Utilisation of free reserves for reduction of
share capital - (88.05) (51.00) - (396.35) (535.40)
Addition on account of capital reduction (825.45) * (825 45)
Expenses incurred for reduction of share cap - - - - (11.09) (11.09)
At 31 March 2025 (825.45) - - - (11.09) (836.54)
* There is no change in equity share capital and other equity as at 1 April 2023 and as at 31 March 2024 due to prior period errors
Summary of material accounting policies 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For GSKA & Co. For and on behalf of lhe boar

Chartered
Firg Regi

Ganesfl Gaikwad
Partner
Membership Number: 135612
Place: Pune
Date: 19 June 2025

Maharashtra Tr L/ lnl’rnnruc re Limited
/ ( Z) Lar

Surya Rajshekhar Deshraj
Managing Director

DIN: 08920289

Place: Gurugram

Date: 19 June 2025

phia Lorean Swam
Company Secretary
Membership No. A
Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 June 2025

Satish Vnthllrlo Chavan
Chairman

DIN: 05210333

Place: Mumbai

Date: 19 June 2025



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Corporate information

Maharashtra Transmission Communication Infrastructure Limited (‘MTCIL” or ‘the Company’) is a
joint venture between Sterlite Electric Limited ('SEL’) (formerly known as Sterlite Power Transmission
Limited ('SPTL’)) and Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited ('MSETCL"). The
Company was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on 9 August 2012. The
registered office of the Company is located at Prakashganga, Plot No C 19, E— Block, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai MH 400051.

The principal commercial activity of the Company would be making available fibre capacity on lease
rental to retail, wholesale and enterprise/corporate customers, drawn from Optical Power Ground Wire
(OPGW) network. The CIN of the Company is U64201MH2012PLC234316.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution passed by the Board
of Directors of the Company on 19 June 2025.

2. Material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, as
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the certain financial
assets which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Millions, except when otherwise indicated.
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

The following is the summary of material accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its
financial statements:

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents all assets and liabilities other than deferred tax assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet based on current/non-current classification as per Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in Schedule III (Division II) to the Act. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

An asset is current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
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e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its normal
operating cycle.

b) Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is its functional currency. The
Company does not have any foreign operation and has assessed the functional currency to be INR.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

¢) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable;
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Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets such as property plant and equipment.
Involvement of external valuers is decided by the management on a need basis and with relevant
approvals. The valuers involved are selected based on criteria like market knowledge, reputation,
independence and professional standards. The management decides after discussion with the external
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for the valuation.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movement of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or reassessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in
the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management in conjunction with the external valuers also compares the change in fair value of
each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above.

d) Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from IRU/ARC contracts:

The performance obligation is satisfied over the contract period as and when services are rendered.
Revenue is recognised on a straight line over the contract period.

Maintenance charges are billed to the customer on a monthly basis.

Revenue from upfront connectivity set up and access charges:

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time upon successful handover to and acceptance
of links by the customer.

Revenue from sale of traded goods:

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time upon delivery of the goods and payment is
generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

Other operating revenue:

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time upon completion of service and acceptance of
the customer.
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Contract balances
Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs its obligation under the
contract.

e) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

f) Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961; and the Income Computation
and Disclosure Standards prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside of profit or loss is recognised outside of profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside of profit or loss is recognised outside of profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
Company and the same taxation authority.

g) Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Plant and
equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of
the property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed,
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of
profit or loss as incurred. No decommissioning liabilities are expected or be incurred on the assets of
plant and equipment.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during
construction period is capitalised as part of the construction costs to the extent the expenditure can be
attributable to construction activity or is incidental there to. Income earned during the construction
period is deducted from the total of the indirect expenditure.

Depreciation on the item of property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using
the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management which are within the
prescribed life under the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
the expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
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amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or

loss.
The Company does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Right of way (ROW) pertains to the right granted by Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission
Company limited to the Company to establish communication network in the state of Maharashtra.
ROW is amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 28 years for which the right has been granted.
Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

i) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives recejved. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives by the management of the assets, as follows:

Land 13-17 years
Building 17 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (k)
Impairment of non-financial assets,

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
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interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases to those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the

lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

j) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of
the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

k) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies
or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets are prepared for the entire project life.
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Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except
for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the
impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

1) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

m) Financial instruments

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e..
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by Regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date
i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost

ii. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

iii. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and forei gn
exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On de recognition of the asset, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR
method.
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

This category is generally applied to cash and short-term deposits.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the
fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification
is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to statement of profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s combined balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass—through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass—through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits, trade
receivables and bank balance;

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12—month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of
the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12—month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12—month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

* All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument;

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that: are contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in
the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

¢ Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as
an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit—impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings and related costs and other payables.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

Alter initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities further includes trade and other payables, borrowings in nature of
term loans etc. For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified at
amortised cost.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced 'by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
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financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised Accounting Treatment
classification Classification
Amortised Cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference

between previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in
statement of profit or loss.

FVTPL Amortised Cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross
carrying amount.

Amortised Cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in
OCI. No change in EIR due to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised Cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised
cost carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI
is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is
measured as if it had always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying
amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain

or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement
of profit or loss at the reclassification date.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of balance sheet comprise of cash at bank and in hand and
short—term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

o) Dividends

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distribution to preference and equity shareholders of
the Company when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of

the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders.
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p) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The company does
not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares.

q) Presentation of EBITDA

The Company presents Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (‘EBITDA”) in the
Statement of profit or loss; this is not specifically required by Ind AS 1. The term EBITDA is not defined
in Ind AS. Ind AS compliant Schedule III allows companies to present line items, sub-line items and
sub—totals to be presented as an addition or substitution on the face of the financial statements when
such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the company’s financial position or performance.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to present EBITDA as a separate line item on the face of the
statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from
continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization
expense, finance income, finance costs and tax expense.

r) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Core
Management Committee which includes the Board of Directors which is the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (‘CODM’) and considering the economic characteristics of the Company’s operations, the
Company's activities primarily comprise of transmission of electricity in certain states in India. Under
Ind AS - 108 “Operating Segments”, this activity falls within a single operating segment.

2.3 Recent Pronouncements

Several amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2025, but do not have an
impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards
or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time
to time, and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The following recent developments
in Ind AS are relevant for consideration in the current and upcoming reporting periods:

i. Implementation of Ind AS 117 — Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), through a notification dated August 12, 2024, notified Ind
AS 117 — Insurance Contracts, which supersedes Ind AS 104. Ind AS 117 establishes a comprehensive
accounting framework for insurance and reinsurance contracts. It aims to ensure that entities provide
relevant and comparable information through consistent recognition, measurement, presentation, and
disclosure principles.

Ind AS 117 introduces a general measurement model based on the present value of future cash flows, a
risk adjustment, and a contractual service margin. It also allows a simplified premium allocation
approach for certain short-duration contracts. The standard is applicable to entities engaged in issuing
insurance contracts and holding reinsurance contracts.
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The Company has assessed the applicability of Ind AS 117 and concluded that it does not have a
material impact on its financial statements, as the Company is not engaged in the business of issuing
insurance or reinsurance contracts.

ii. Amendments to Other Indian Accounting Standards

In alignment with the introduction of Ind AS 117, several consequential amendments have been made
to other standards including Ind AS 101 (First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards), Ind AS
103 (Business Combinations), Ind AS 105 (Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations), Ind AS 107 (Financial Instruments: Disclosures), Ind AS 109 (Financial Instruments), and
Ind AS 115 (Revenue from Contracts with Customers).

These amendments are primarily intended to incorporate references to Ind AS 1 17, align presentation
and disclosure requirements, and maintain consistency across the financial reporting framework.

The Company has reviewed the amended standards and determined that there is no significant impact
on the financial statements for the year ended March 3 1, 2025.
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NOTE 3: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Rs. in million)
Plant and Machinery
Cost
As at 01 April 2023 1,220.57
Additions 617.19
Disposals s
As at 31 March 2024
Additions
Disposals
As at 31 March 2025
Depreciation
As at 01 April 2023 359.73
Depreciation charge for the vear 61.90
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2024 421.63
Depreciation charge for the year 94.47
Disposals (2.12)
As at 31 March 2025 513.98
Net book value
As at 31 March 2025 1,639.86
As at 31 March 2024 1,416.13
There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). held by the Company.
The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property.
NOTE 4: CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Rs. in million
As at 01 April 2023 189.92
Add: Additions during the year 636.61
Less: Capitalised during the year (617.18)
As at 31 March 2024 209.35
Add: Additions during the year 44124
Less: Capitalised during the year (336.20)
As at 31 March 2025 314.39

Capital work in progress comprises expenditure in respect of the establishing of optical fibre cable network, colo, and other associated expenditure in the state of Maharashtra.

Following is the ageing of capital work in progress:

(i) Following is the ageing of capital work in progress (Rs. in million)
Particulars Amount in capital work in progress for
At 31 March 2025
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 314.39 - - - 314.39
Total 314.39 - - - 314.39
Particulars Amount in capital work in progress for
At 31 March 2024
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 206.55 2.80 - - 209.35
Total 206.55 2.80 - - 209.35

NOTE 5: OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Rs. in million)

Right of Way (RoW)*
Cost
As at 01 April 2023 151.00
Additions
As at 31 March 2024
Additions
As at 31 March 2025
Amortisation
As at 01 April 2023 29.45
Amortisation charge for the year 7.87
As at 31 March 2024 37.32
Amortisation charge for the year 7.85
As at 31 March 2025 45.17

Net book value
As at 31 March 2025 105.83
As at 31 March 2024 113.68

*Right of way (ROW) pertains (o the right granted by Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited (MSETCL) to the Company to establish communication network in the state of Maharashtra in accordance with the terms of
the joint venture agreement between the Sterlite Electric Limited (‘SEL’) (formerly known as Sterlite Power Transmission Limited ('SPTL')) and MSETCL ("the agreement"). Pursuant to an addendum to the d during the year
ended March 31,2023 between SEL and MSETCL the validity of the agreement was extended by a period of 6 years and accordingly the useful life of the ROW was revised from 22 years to 28 years during the previous year
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NOTE 6: RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

Cost

As at 01 April 2023
Additions

As at 31 March 2024
Additions

As at 31 March 2025

Amortisation

As at 01 April 2023
Amortisation charge for the year
As at 31 March 2024
Amortisation charge for the year
As at 31 March 2025

Net book value
As at 31 March 2025
As at 31 March 2024
NOTE 7: LOANS
Loans to related parties * (refer note 35)
Total

Current
Non-current

*The Company has given a secured loan to Sterlite Convergence Limited amounting to Rs.
years.

Break-up of loans and advances in the nature of loans as at year end:

Type of borrower

Promoter
Directors
KMP's
Related partics

(Rs. in million)
Right of use
(RoU) - Land

6.68
0.18
6.86
5.81
12.67

144
044
1.88
0.79
2.67

10.00
498

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)

500.00 500.00

500.00 500.00

500.00 -

500.00

500 million (March 31, 2024: 500 million) carrying interest at the rate of 10-years GOI Sec vield + spread (1.3%) p.a and is repayable at the end of 3

March 31, 2025
Amount of loans  Percentage to the

and advances in
the nature of loan
outstanding

March 31, 2024

Amount of loans and Percentage to the total
advances in the nature of loans and advances in

500.00

500.00

the nature of loans
500.00 100.00%
500.00 100.00%
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NOTE 8: TRADE RECEIVABLES

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Current
Trade receivables 22242 763.32
222.42 763.32
Break-up for security details:
- Unsecured, considered good 22242 763.32
- Unsecured, credit impaired reccivables - -
22242 763.32
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
- Unsecured, considered good - =
-Ui d, credit impaired receivabl . M
Net current trade receivables 222.42 763.32
Ageing of current trade receivables
(Rs. in million)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Kasticalars Not due l‘:o::;: ¢ 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
As at 31 March 2025
good 152.98 66.78 2.60 0.04 0.02 - 22242
Undisputed Trade receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - 73 u
Undisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - . & w
Disputed Trade receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 152.98 66.78 2.60 0.04 0.02 - 22242
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Exticulary Not due l"‘::t:: 9 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
As at 31 March 2024
good 704.99 58.07 0.17 0.09 - - 763.32
Undisputed Trade receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Undisputed Trade reccivables — credit impaired . . a = = - »
Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - - - .
Disputed Trade receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - S
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - = -
Total 704.99 58.07 0.17 0.09 - - 763.32

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is
a partner, a director or a member.

Trade reccivables are non-interest bearing and credit period varies as per the contractual terms with the customers.
Refler note 38 on credit risk of trade receivables, which explains how the Company manages and measures credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due or impaired.

NOTE 9: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Non-current
Deposits with banks with original maturity for more than 12 months (refer note 12)* 85.76 16.63
Security deposits to related party (refer note 35)** 150.00 150.00
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 257 -
Security deposits to others (unsecured, considered good) 0.86 0.86
239.19 167.49
Current
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 61.72 48.55
Interest accrued on security deposits given to related parties (refer note 35) 13.50 6.14
Security deposits to others (unsecured, considered good) 8.87 -
84.09 54.69

*Held as lien by bank against bank guarantee.

** The Company has entered into Management Service agreement with Sterlite Electric Limited (‘SEL’) (formerly known as Sterlite Power Transmission Limited ('SPTL')). As per the terms of the said agreement, the Company has given
interest bearing refundable security deposits which carries interest rate of 10% p.a. till the validity of the agreement i.c. till 31 March 2028. The security deposit is secured by Bank Guarantee of Rs. 150 million issued by SEL
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NOTE 10: OTHER ASSETS

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Non-current
Prepaid expenses 0.43 0.57
Total 0.43 0.57
Current Fi
GST receivable 2,25 l-87
Prepaid expenses 0- 7 b
Advance to vendors i
Other current asscts S :
Total 10.43 4.63
NOTE 11: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
i 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Balance with banks -
- on current accounts 12.05 | l(;_;:
- deposits with original maturity of less than threc months i(z):))(; |;] -;235
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
2 LANCES
S i (Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Deposit with banks with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 1322;2 7??:(3)
i vi igi ity 12 month: 3 6.
Deposit with banks with original maturity for more than s i Sl
Less: Amount disclosed under non-current financial assets (refer note 9) (85.76) (16.63)
Total 1,849.19 772.50
2 ME TAX ASSETS (NET 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
SRS i (Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Tax deducted at source (net of provisions) 333.22 185.92
Total 333.22 185.92
NOTE 14: SHARE CAPITAL
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Authorised share capital
100.00 million (31 March 2024: 80.00 million) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 1,000.00 800.00
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares (nos. million)
30.11 million (31 March 2024: 44.02 million) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up 301.08 440.23
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 301.08 440.23
a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
At the beginning of the year 44.02 44023 3455 34551
Issued during the year# - - 8.80 $8.05
Bonus share issued* s 5 0.67 6.67
Equity shares cancelled pursuant to reduction of share capital ** (13.92) (139.15) - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 30.11 301.08 44.02 440.23

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The Company has paid interim dividend of Rs. 251.81 million in aggregate during the vear ended 31 March 2025.
Sterlite Technologies Limited ('STL') and Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited (MSETCL') executed an addendum dated 28 August 2016 to the Joint Venture agreement dated 4 May 2012 which provided that capital
structure ratio of the Company between STL and MSETCL would be 51:49. STL's 51% stake would comprise entirely of equity shares allotted against cash consideration. The composition of MSETCL's 49% stake would be as follows

- 40% in equity shares allotted against cash consideration;

- 9% in equity shares allotted as bonus shares without consideration being received in cash;

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 05 Febuary 2021 approved the allotment of 11,22,449 cquity shares of Rs 10 each as Bonus Shares to MSETCL. Further, the company has transferred a sum equal to the nominal value of the shares
so issued, i.c. Rs 11.22 million , from the securities premium account

Pursuant to share purchase agreement ('SPA") dated 29 March 2022 executed between the Company, STL. MSETCL and Sterlite Electric Limited ('SEL") (formerly known as Sterlite Power Transmission Limited (‘'SPTL")), SEL has purchased
STL's equity stake in MTCIL from STL w.e.f 31 March 2022.

*The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 14 Febuary 2024 approved the allotment of 6,67,277 equity shares of Rs 10 each as Bonus Shares to MSETCL. Further, the company has transferred a sum equal to the nominal value of the shares
so issued, i.c. Rs 6.67 million , from the securities premium account.

# During the previous year the Company had reds d 88,04,578 I d ble prefe shares of Rs. 10 cach and issued 88.04,578 cquity shares of Rs 10 each on right issue basis which was subscribed by MSETCL

** During the current year, the Company, by passing special resolution dated 23 April 2024, has filed an application under Section 66 and other ap bl isions of the Ct ies Act, 2013 (‘the Application’) with National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai bench ("NCLT"), to reduce the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital (‘the Capital’) from Rs. 440.23 million cmsnsung ofu 022,891 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 301.08 million consisting of 30,107,833
equity shares by cancelling and extinguishing, aggregate, 31.61% of the Capital on proportionate basis, comprising of 13,915,058 equity shares @ Rs. 107.80 per equity shares consisting of face value of Rs. 10 each and premium of Rs. 97.80
cach. The application has been sanctioned by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT') on 03 March 2025.

In order to comply with the Joint Venture Agreement agreement executed from time to time the holding of MSETCL in the Company stands as under, after capital reduction:
- 40% equity shares amounting to 1,20,43,226 equity shares of Rs. 10 each

- 9% bonus shares amounting to 27.09.612 equity shares of Rs. 10 each

The total holding of MSETCL in the Company is 1.47.52.838 equity shares of Rs. 10 cach.

As a result of the above, the effective equity share capital holding ratio of the Company as at 31 March 2025 is - SEL: 51% and MSETCL: 49% and as at 31 March 2024 is - SEL: 51% and MSETCL: 49%.
The effective preference share capital holding ratio of the Company as at 31 March 2025 is - MSETCL: Nil and as at 31 March 2024 is MSETCL: Nil.




MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
¢. Shares held by holding pany and their subsidiaries/.
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. in million % holding No. in million %o holding
Sterlite Electric Limited (‘SEL’) (formerly known as Sterlite Power Transmission Limited (‘'SPTL')) 1535 51.00% 2245 51.00%
1535 51.00% 22.45 51.00%

d. Details of shareholders holding more than § % of shares in the Company:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. in million % holding No. in million % holding
Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Co. Ltd. 14.75 49.00% 21.57 49.00%
Sterlite Electric Limited (‘SEL’) (formerly known as Sterlite Power Transmission Limited ('SPTL") 15.35 51.00% 2245 51.00%
30.11 100.00% 4.2 100.00%
e. Detail of shareholding of promoters
31 March 2025
Name of promoters No. in shares in Change No. in shares in % of total shares % change during the
million at the million at the end year
beginning of the of the year
year
Sterlite Electric Limited (‘SEL") (formerly known as Sterlite Power Transmission Limited ('SPTL") 2245 (7.10) 1535 51.00% -
Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Co. Ltd. 21.57 (6.82) 14.75 49.00% -
Total 44.02 (13.92) 30.11 100.00% =
31 March 2024
Name of promoters No. in shares in Change No. in shares in % of total shares % change during the
million at the million at the end year
beginning of the of the year
year
Sterlite Electric Limited (‘SEL’) (formerly known as Sterlite Power Transmission Limited (‘'SPTL')) 2245 0.00 2245 - 51.00% -
Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Co. Ltd. 12.10 9.47 21.57 49.00% 78.28%
Total 34.55 9.47 44.02 100.00% 78.28%
The sharcholding information is based on the legal ownership of the shares and has been extracted from the records of the Company including register of sharchold b
NOTE 15: OTHER EQUITY
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Securities premium
Balance as per last financial statements - 6.67
Utilised for issue of bonus shares (refer note 14) - (6.67)
Closing balance s =
Retained earnings
Balance as per last financial statements 235.00 33.02
Profit for the year 413.16 315.94
Less: Interim dividend paid (251.81) (25.91)
Less: Creation of capital redemption reserve - (88.05)
Less: Utilisation of reserves on account of capital reduction scheme (396.35) -
Less: Cost of equity (11.09) -
Closing balance (11.09) 235.00
Other
Deficit on account of capital reduction
Balance as per last financial statements - -
Add: Addition on account of capital reduction (825.45) -
Closing balance (825.45) -
Capital contribution reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 51.00 51.00
Utilisation of reserves on account of capital reduction scheme (51.00) -
Closing balance - 51.00
Capital redemption reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 88.05 -
Created on redemption of preference shares during the year (refer note 14) - 88.05
Utilisation of reserves on account of capital reduction scheme (88.05) -
Closing balance = 88.05
Total (825.45) 139.05
15.1 Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013
15.2 Capital contribution reserve
Sterlite Technologies Limited ile holding company) had paid an amount of Rs. 51 million to MSETCL in respect of the Right of Way (ROW) granted by MSETCL to the Company for a period of 28 vears (31 March 2024: 28 years) to

establish communication network in the state of Maharashtra which has been accounted for as Capital contribution from STL (also refer note 5). The reserve has been fully utilised to pay off liability created on account of capital reduction in the

current year.

15.3 Capital redemption reserve

During the previous year, the Company has redeemed, out of profits of the Company, 88,04,578 15%

available for distribution of dividend. The reserve has been fully utilised to pay off liability created on account of capital reduction in the current year,

p f shares of face value of Rs.10 each. Accordingly, the Company has created capital
redemption reserve of Rs. 88.05 million in compliance with section 55 of the Companies Act 2013. The said capital redemption reserve can only be utilised for limited purpose in d with provision of the C i

Act 2013 and is not



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 16: TRADE PAYABLES

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Current
Trade payables
- total ding dues of micro ises and small enterprises - 6.34
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 198.54 105.34

198.54 111.68
Trade payables to related parties (refer note 35) 13337 89,90
Other trade payables 65.17 21.78
Total 198.54 111.68
Trade pavables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 days terms.
Ageing of trade payables
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
31 March 2025
MSME - - - - - - -
Others 12.25 76.82 109.47 - - - 198.54
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - =
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - i
Total 12.25 76.82 109.47 - - - 198.54
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not due Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
31 March 2024
MSME 543 - 0.91 - - - 6.34
Others 3212 - 73.17 0.05 - - 105.34
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - =
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - &
Total 37.55 - 74.08 0.05 - - 111.68

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 17: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Current

Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipments* (refer note 35)
Payable to related parties (refer note 35)

Security deposits

Others

Total

* Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 90-120 days terms

NOTE 18: CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Non-current
Unearned revenue on IRU/ARC contracts
Total

Current
Unearned revenue on IRU/ARC contracts
Total

NOTE 19: OTHER LIABILITIES

Current

Advance interest received on loan given to related parties (refer note 35)
TDS payable

GST payable

Total

NOTE 20: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Deferred tax liability

Property plant and equi Impact of di between tax dep:
Others

Gross deferred tax liability

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefit obligations

Deferred tax asset on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Disallowance under section 40(a)(ia)

Gross deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax liability

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/liability

Opening deferred tax liability, net

Deferred (tax credit) / charge recorded in statement of profit and loss

Deferred (tax credit) / charge recorded in other comprehensive income
Closing deferred tax liability, net

for the financial reporting

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
115.86 43.89
& 47.62
9.92 11.48
0.28 2,08
126.06 105.07
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
4,888.29 3,825.23
4,888.29 3,825.23
43431 325.19
43431 325.19
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
- 134
68.76 9.34
- 50.47
68.76 61.15
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
140.83 115.76
a 0.56
140.83 116.32
3.29 -
3.29 =
137.54 116.32

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
116.32 40.06
21.22 76.26
137.54 116.32



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 21: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of goods and services (see note below) 840.20 628.59
Other operating revenue
Other operating revenue 3.14 o
Total revenue from operations 843.34 628.59
21.1 Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:
Type of goods or service 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Revenue from IRU/ARC contracts 769.67 607.87
Revenue from upfront connectivity set up and access charges 70.07 19.40
Revenue from sale of traded goods 0.46 1.32
Total revenue from contracts with customers 840.20 628.59
India 840.20 628.59
Total revenue from contracts with customers 840.20 628.59
Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue recognised at a point in time 70.53 20.72
Revenue recognised over time 769.67 607.87
Total revenue from contracts with customers 840.20 628.59
The Company collects GST on behalf of the Government. Hence, GST is not included in revenue from contract with customers
The Company's primary business activity comprises of establishi ication network in the state of Maharashtra, India. Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS - 108 “Operating Segments™, this activity falls within a single
operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of Ind AS -108 have not been given.
21.2 Contract balances
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Trade receivables 22242 763.32
Contract liabilities 5,322.60 4.150.42
The company provides fiber capacity drawn from its OPGW network to retail, wholesale and pri P on indefeasible right of use or annual rate basis. If a pays i ion before the Company

transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs its obligation under the contract.

21.3 Performance obligation
Information about the Company’s perfc

are ised below

The performance obligation is satisfied over the contract period as the services are rendered. Revenue is recognised on a straight line over the contract period.
Maintenance charges income is recognised over time and is billed to the customer on a monthly/quarterly basis.

v fir fi ivil

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time upon ful hand to and P of links by the customer

Revenue from sale of traded goods:

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

21.4 Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
_ ) P i (Rs. in million) Rs. in million)

Amount included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 325.19 Ly ';32.:‘1‘

21.5Tr: ion price all d to the ining performance obli

- Within one year 43431 325.19

- More than one year 4,888.29 3.825.23

NOTE 22: OTHER INCOME

Liabilities written back
Miscellaneous income

Total

NOTE 23: PURCHASES OF TRADED GOODS

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchase during the year
less: Inventory at the end of the year

NOTE 24: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of right of-use assets

Total

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
1.80 -
0.72 =
2.52 -
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million (Rs. in million) _
0.19 0.95
0.19 0.95
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
. in million Rs. il
94.47 61.90
7.85 7.87
0.79 0.44

103.11 70.21




MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 25: FINANCE INCOME

Interest income on

-Fixed deposit

-Loan given to related parties (refer note 35)
-Security deposit given to related party (refer note 35)
-Advance given to related party (refer note 35)
-Income tax refund

Total

NOTE 26: FINANCE COST

Bank charges

Interest expense on lease liability (refer note 29)
Interest others

Total

NOTE 27: OTHER EXPENSES

a)

b)

Rates and taxes

Network repairs and maintenance charges
Power expenses

Loss on sale of assets

Outsourced Manpower

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional expenses
Revenue share (refer note 35)

Payment to auditor (refer details below)
Directors sitting fee (refer note 35)
Insurance

Rent expense

Brokerage expenses

Management fees (refer note 35)

CSR expenses (refer note (b) below)
Consumption of stores and spares
Miscellancous expenses

Total

Payment to auditor
Audit fee
Tax audit fee

Total

Corporate social responsibility expenses

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. in million Rs. in million!
178.84 118.26

4197 4739

15.00 6.82

= 0.83

- 2.02

235.81 175.32
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
1.59 0.52

1.50 0.81

- 0.35

3.09 1.68
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
318 0.16

43.20 29.61

14.84 10.79

1454 -

10.11 5.29

4.03 315

031 4.96

51.30 32.03

033 0.35

0.31 0.36

273 1.86

31.20 10.67

160.93 139.97

64.90 53.30

537 237

1249 10.70

3.08 247

422.85 308.04

0.23 0.23

0.10 0.12

0.33 0.35

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable on the Company and 2% of its average net profits of the last three financial years is positive. Hence, the Company is required to contribute towards Corporate Social Responsibility activitics

Details of CSR expenditure:

Particulars

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year

Particulars

¢) Details related to spent obligations:
i)  Construction/acquisition of any asset
Amount spent during the year
ii) On purposes other than (i) above
Amount spent during the year

d) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
i) Contribution to Public Trust
i) Contribution to Charitable Trust
iii) Unspent amount in relation to:
- Ongoing project
- Other than ongoing project

NOTE 28: TAX EXPENSE

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are:

Current tax
Deferred tax

Total

Reconciliation of tax expense and the ing profit

Accounting profit before income tax

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2024: 25.17%)

Permanent difference effect from current year tax computation

Effect of unused tax losses and tax offsets not recognised as deferred tax assets in previous years
Others

At the effective income tax rate 25.17 % (31 March 2024: 25.17%)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)

by India’s ic tax rate for 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

537 228
537 237

In Cash In Cash
537 237
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
118.05 30.84
21.22 76.25
139.27 107.09
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
552.43 423.03
139.03 106.47
1.39 0.38
(L15) 0.24
139.27 107.09

139.27 107.09



MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 29: LEASE LIABILITY

The Company has long term lease contracts for land. Information about Ieases for which the Company is lessee is presented below

Lease liabilities
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Less than one vear 1.51 0.88
One to two years 1.63 0.93
Two to five years $57 322
More than five years 19.30 9.24
Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at year end 28.01 14.27
Unaccrued finance cost 14.95 7.08
Net lease liability 13.06 7.19
Set out below. are the carrying amount of the Company's liabilities and the movement during the year.
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance 7.19 7.03
Add: Additions 581 0.18
Add: Interest expense 1.50 0.81
Less: Payments (144 (0.83)
ing balance 13.06 7.19
glu:em 0.02 0.05
13.04 7.14

Non-current

NOTE 30: EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the vear attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares

The following reflects the profit or loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
Profit for the year 413.16 315.94
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS 4292 35.36
Earning per share
Basic EPS (on nominal value of Rs. 10 per share) Rupees/share 9.63 893
Diluted EPS (on nominal value of Rs. 10 per share) Rupees/share 9.63 893

” The weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS of previous year has been reconsidered on the basis of issue of bonus shares made during the current year (refer note 14)

NOTE 31: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s financial requires to make jud, i and ptions that affect the reported amounts of 3 assets and liabilities and the panying discl, and
disck of conti liabilities. U inty about these ptions and esti could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s ing policies, has made the following jud; which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Estimates and Assumptions
The kev assumptions c(}:mning the future and other key sources of estimati v at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its ptions and esti on ilable when the financial were d. Existing ci and ions about future d P however, may

change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Co:npnny Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Impai 1.

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based
on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows
are derived from the budget for future years and do not include restructuring activitics that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. )

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 32: CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

.

d amount of ing to be ex d on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) is Rs.131.76 million (31 March 2024 Rs. 503.10 million)

NOTE 33: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There are no contingent liabities as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

NOTE 34: DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES AS PER MSMED ACT, 2006

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises*

127 11.52
Interest due on above*

- 0.37

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16. of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. g -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006. N -

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - 037

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disall as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

Interest pavable as per section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 is Nil (31 March 2024: Rs 0.37 million) and same is accrued in the books of accounts. Dues to micro and small enterprises have been
determined to the extent such partics have been identified on the basis of intimation received from the "suppliers” / informations available with the Company regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006,

* The same is included in trade payables and payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment. (refer note 17 and 18 respectively)

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 36: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other
bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

The risk management policies of the Company are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company's activities.

Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. In performing its operating,
investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk. currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings. The Company is not exposed to currency risk and other price risk.

Interest rate risk
The Company is not exposed to the interest rate fluctuation as the Company manages its interest rate risk by having fixed rate borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity
The Company's profit before tax is not affected through the impact on floating rate as the Company has fixed rate borrowings.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and balances with banks.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed through established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a
customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. As are 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the outstanding balance relates to very few
customers and management expects to collect the amount in near future.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk of the
components of balance sheet at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 7. 8. 9, 11 and 12. The
Company does not hold collateral as security.

Balances with banks

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed
by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of
risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.




MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

¢) Liquidity risk

© Li:uidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting its present and future obligations associated with financial liabilities that
are required to be settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's objective is to, at all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity
to meet its cash and collateral obligations. The Company requires funds both for short term operational needs as well as for long term investment
programs mainly in projects. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It aims to minimise
these risks by generating sufficient cash flows from its current operations, which in addition to the available cash and cash equivalents, liquid
investments and sufficient committed fund facilities, will provide liquidity.

The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is
about 30 to 90 days. The other payables are with short term durations. The carrying amounts are assumed to be reasonable approximation of fair value.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

(Rs. in million)

Particulars Faysbleon Less than 1 year il > 5 years Total
demand 5 years
As at 31 March 2025
Trade payables - 198.54 - - 198.54
Lease liabilities - 151 7.20 19.30 28.01
Other financial liabilities - 10.19 - - 10.19
Payables for purchase of property, plant 115.86 - - 115.86
and equipment )
- 326.10 7.20 19.30 352.60
Particulars Payable on Less than 1 year 1 year to =8 years Total
demand S years
As at 31 March 2024
Trade payables - 111.69 - - 111.69
Lease liabilities - 0.88 4.15 9.24 14.27
Other financial liabilities - 61.18 - - 61.18
Payables for purchase of property, plant 43.89 - - 43.89
and equipment )
- 217.64 4.15 9.24 231.03

NOTE 37: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company's policy is
to keep the gearing ratio optimum. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and
cash equivalents and other bank balance.

(Rs. in million)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Trade payables 198.54 111.68
Other financial liabilities 126.06 105.07
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balance (1,871.24) (1,945.35)
Net debt (1,546.64) (1,728.60)
Equity share capital 301.08 440.23
Other equity (836.54) 374.05
Total capital (535.46) 814.28
Capital and net debt (2,082.10) (914.32)
Gearing ratio 74.28% 189.06%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

No changes were made in the

S

j cgves, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
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MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 39: FAIR VALUE

There are no financial instruments which are measured at fair valuc as at the year end. The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and other financial asscts and liabilitics (including short term
borrowings, if any) approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these i For fixed rate b ings, fair values approximate their carryings amounts largely due to movements in interest rates from
the recognition of such financial instrument till period end not being material

NOTE 40: SEGMENT DISCLOSURES

The principal commercial activity of the Company would be making available fibre capacity on lease rental to retail, wholesale and enterprise/corporate customers, drawn from Optical Power Ground Wire (OPGW) network within Maharashtra

On review of all the relevant aspects including, in particular, the system of internal financial reporting to the Board of Directors which is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM') and idering the ! of the
Company’s operations, the Company is of the view that it operates in a single primary segment The said treatment is in accordance with the guiding principles enacted in Indian A dard 108 Operating Segment (Ind AS 108).
NOTE 41: ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE III (DIVISION II) OF THE ACT, AS AMENDED
(i) The Company has availed working capital facility from the bank on the basis of security of current assets. The Company files the statement of current assets with the bank on periodical basis. Following are the d pancies between books of
accounts and quarterly statements submitted to HDFC Bank Limited which has sanctioned credit facilities to the Company vide sanction letter dated 11 November 2022 and renewal letter dated 10 January 2024.
For the year ended March 31, 2025
1 Tradepavable
Reconciling items
Amount as reported in the =
s.No. Quarter quarterly return/ Prov.umn for | Management fee Others Amount as per Net difference Remarks (Note 1)
services and payable books of accounts
statement
expenses
1 Jun-24 0.09 79.70 16.22 56.76 152.77 -
2 Sep-24 20.04 66.31 14.60 68.65 169.60 -
3 Dec-24 80.52 5331 16.22 39.10 189.15 -
4 Mar-25 73.27 61.80 14.60 48.87 198.54 -
Note 1 Balances toward provision for services and expenses and management fee payable were not required to be considered in the quarterly statement submitted to the lenders.
2 Trade receiv:
S.No. Quarter L n:ar:pr:/rt’t:t:l::‘qulnerly v——‘—mnn;:;:"mm’ Amount as per books of accounts Net difference Resaarks
un-24 651.95 20.30 672.25 -
Sep-24 161.69 46.18 207.87 -
Dec-24 426.16 10.65 436.81 -
4 Mar-25 213.79] 8.63 222.42 -
For the year ended March 31, 2024
1 Tradepavable
Amount as reported in the Provisi Rc[c:nalu: L) -y Aok
S.No. uarter rt turn/ rovision for anageme) ee nt as per ”
Q qua“::zn:: g bt s Ervabi books of accounts | Vet difference Remarks (Note 1)
Jun-23 373 68.73 10.82 83.28 -
|Sep-23 013 68.73 10.82 79.68 -
Dec-23 2180 68.73 10.82 101.35 -
4 Mar-24 28.06 13.13 11.99 53.18 -
Note 1 Balances toward provision for services and expenses and management fee payable were not required to be considered in the quarterly statement submitted to the lenders
2 Tradereceivable
Amount as reported in the quarterl;
§.No. Quarter m:'::/ nntcmemq“ =y Amount as per books of accounts Net difference Remarks
1 Jun-23 3081 3081 -
2 Sep-23 18.23 18.23 -
3 Dec-23 146.80 146.80 -
4 Mar-24 754.87 75487 -




MAHARASHTRA TRANSMISSION COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
2 D yearended 31 March 2025

NOTE 42: OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(1) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) other than as

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner wh by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee. security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as. search or survey
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(vii) The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(vii1) The Company does not have any creation or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with registrar of companics beyond the statutory period

(ix) During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has used ing software SAP ECC for maintai count which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
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